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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Welcome to

          3  the August 14th Subcommittee of Planning,

          4  Dispositions and Concessions, a Subcommittee of Land

          5  Use in the New York City Council.

          6                 We have a number of guests today.

          7  Welcome to the City Council.  Sorry about the change

          8  in meeting location.

          9                 I am joined today by two colleagues,

         10  members of the Committee, Council Member Maria Baez

         11  of the Bronx, and Council Member Andrew Lanza of

         12  Staten Island.  Thank you both for being here.

         13                 We have a number of items, not too

         14  many, on the agenda today, one of them will take a

         15  little longer than the others.  So, we are going to

         16  start with the first two.

         17                 The first one is going to be Land Use

         18  Number 218, that is the Atlantic Avenue residence,

         19  which is Brooklyn Community Board 16, C 060457 HAK.

         20  As I begin to introduce this one, let me welcome HPD

         21  up to the witness table.

         22                 This is an application from HPD

         23  pursuant to Article 16 of the General Municipal Law

         24  for the designation of several properties as

         25  UDAAP'S, and we are joined today by Carol Clark of
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          2  HPD.

          3                 Ms. Clarke, as always, if you would

          4  go ahead and introduce this item for us, and we also

          5  have a couple of members of the public who wish to

          6  testify on this subject as well.

          7                 MS. CLARK:  Thank you Council Member

          8  Garodnick.

          9                 It is a pleasure to be here.  This

         10  project is a ULURP, which consists of the proposed

         11  disposition of 13 vacant, city- owned lots for the

         12  new construction of three, four- story buildings

         13  under HPD's Habitat for Humanity Program.  When they

         14  are completed, the project will provide 41

         15  condominium units, plus a superintendents unit, a

         16  community room, a laundry facility, and 7,500 square

         17  feet of common, landscaped open space.

         18                 Council Member Dilan, in his district

         19  the project is located, has reviewed it and has

         20  indicated his support.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         23  Ms. Clark.

         24                 Now the 41 condo units, how will

         25  these be sold out?  What are the restrictions on the

                                                            5

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  sale of these units?  How exactly will this work?

          3                 MS. CLARK:  The units will be sold to

          4  families with annual incomes no greater than 80

          5  percent of the area median income, which now is

          6  $56,700 for a family of four.  They will be subject

          7  to the typical lottery, and 50 percent of the units

          8  will be made available to folks living within the

          9  local community board.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How long do

         11  you expect it would take to develop these 41 units,

         12  and you said it was three buildings, yes?

         13                 MS. CLARK:  That is correct, and I

         14  will defer that question to some of the subsequent

         15  folks testifying from Habitat who are better

         16  equipped and closer to the ground can answer that

         17  readily.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         19                 Are there other questions on this?

         20                 You indicated that Council Member

         21  Dilan is in support of this project, yes?

         22                 MS. CLARK:  Absolutely, yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         24  you.  I will hold the rest of the questions for the

         25  folks from Habitat for Humanity, who I will welcome
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          2  up right now to form a panel of two.              One

          3  of them is Mr. Les Bluestone, 334 Furman, and Gina

          4  Buffone, did I do that right?  Okay, Ms. Buffone,

          5  please join us.

          6                 Welcome to the City Council, and you

          7  can go right ahead when you are ready.

          8                 MR. BLUESTONE:  Thank you very much

          9  Councilman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Please

         11  identify yourself as you start.

         12                 MR. BLUESTONE:  My name is Les

         13  Bluestone.  I am here in the capacity of Board Chair

         14  for Habitat for Humanity- New York City.

         15                 I want to thank you for the

         16  opportunity, and for considering our development.

         17  We are very excited about this project.  This will

         18  be the largest project that we have undertaken to

         19  date, and in addition to the energy around the

         20  project, we are very proud to be on the cutting edge

         21  of construction in that this will be a Lead-

         22  certified housing development.  Lead in case any of

         23  you do not know, is the standard by which everyone

         24  is achieving sustainable and energy efficient design

         25  in the country.
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          2                 We are very excited.  We are pleased

          3  the City Council has been a great supporter of ours

          4  in the past, and Councilman Lanza may be interested

          5  to know that we have now recently merged with Staten

          6  Island, and we hope to be paying you a visit out

          7  there, and doing more work in your area as well.

          8                 Gina Buffone is here with me, and she

          9  can go into the details of the project.

         10                 MS. BUFFONE:  I am the Senior Project

         11  Manager on this particular project, and I will say a

         12  little bit about Habitat for Humanity.

         13                 We are an affordable housing builder,

         14  building throughout New York City.  We provide home

         15  ownership for families in need, as was described.

         16  The families need to be first time home owners, and

         17  we have a unique construction model in that we hire

         18  a portion of the building out to a general

         19  contractor to go the corn- shell of the

         20  construction, and then we work with thousands of

         21  volunteers throughout New York City and the

         22  community, as well as the family partners

         23  themselves, to help construct the interior of the

         24  buildings.  There is the sweat equity portion of the

         25  family partners work is towards the down payment of
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          2  their home.

          3                 As was said, this will be a Lead

          4  Project, and it will benefit the families in that it

          5  will save energy costs, and provide a healthier

          6  living environment for the families.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          8  very much.

          9                 First of all, let me thank you both

         10  for all of the work that you do in New York City and

         11  elsewhere.  Of course, the environmental component

         12  of this is also very exciting and groundbreaking.

         13                 The timing on this just so that we

         14  understand, upon approval we have 13 vacant lots

         15  now.  How much time will it take to actually put

         16  this all together from start to finish to be able to

         17  create the 41 units?

         18                 MS. BUFFONE:  We are completing the

         19  design phase. The construction drawings are

         20  complete, and we are hoping to break ground in

         21  November, and we will phase it with the three

         22  buildings so the first building is completing in

         23  about 18 months, and the final buildings' completion

         24  will be in about 24 months from start.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And do you
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          2  start the lottery- there is a lottery program as Ms.

          3  Clark described, you start that sometime prior to

          4  completion?

          5                 MR. BLUESTONE:  Yes, that is started

          6  at the very outset.  Once we know the project is

          7  real, then we begin to look for what we call`family

          8  partners,' and there is a selection process and that

          9  begins immediately.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Family

         11  partners is defined as what?

         12                 MR. BLUESTONE:  Well, it is defined

         13  as Carol defined it but it what we call`family

         14  partners' because they do put in sweat equity.  They

         15  are required to put in a certain number of hours as

         16  a part of their commitment to the project.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How do you

         18  handle a situation where somebody may have either

         19  won the lottery, won the chance portion, but may not

         20  be physically up to the sweat equity part, and

         21  actually putting up drywall or something like that?

         22                 MS. BUFFONE:  There are other

         23  opportunities to work with Habitat, either in the

         24  office or other ways that it is not required that

         25  they do physical work.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, are

          3  there other questions here?

          4                 We have also been joined by Council

          5  Member Jessica Lappin of Manhattan, and seeing no

          6  other questions, and no other members of the public

          7  wishing to testify on this item, we are going to

          8  close the hearing on Land Use 218.

          9                 Thank you very much for being here.

         10                 MS. BLUESTONE:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  That again,

         12  was the Atlantic Avenue Residence, Brooklyn

         13  Community Board 16, district of Council Member

         14  Martin Dilan who has indicated his support of the

         15  program, C 060457 HAK.

         16                 We are closing the hearing on that

         17  one.

         18                 I am going to open the hearing on

         19  Land Use Number 128, non- ULURP Number 20065399 HAK.

         20    That is a property in the district of Council

         21  Member Darlene Mealy.  It is 395 Saratoga Avenue in

         22  Brooklyn, and part of the Storeworks Program.

         23                 I would like to invite Ms. Clark back

         24  up to the witness table to introduce this item.

         25                 MS. CLARKE:  Thank you Council Member
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          2  Garodnick.

          3                 I am joined by the Assistant

          4  Commissioner for Housing Production, Wendell

          5  Walters, who is going to give us the testimony today

          6  on the item you have just cited.

          7                 Wendell.

          8                 MR. WALTERS:  Good afternoon, I am

          9  Wendell Walters the Commissioner for Housing

         10  Production at HPD providing testimony in support of

         11  Land Use Item Number 128.

         12                 It consists of the proposed

         13  disposition of one city- owned vacant lot at 395

         14  Saratoga Avenue through HPD's Storeworks Program.

         15                 The Storeworks Program includes the

         16  rehabilitation of small, vacant, city- owned, mixed-

         17  use buildings as well as new construction on vacant

         18  sites.

         19                 The program is carried on in

         20  cooperation with the Neighborhood Housing Services

         21  of New York City, an experienced, not- for- profit

         22  organization that acts as developer, oversees the

         23  design and construction, and markets the completed

         24  buildings to individual home buyers.

         25                 The proposed project will allow the
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          2  new construction of one, three- story building,

          3  which will net two residential units over ground-

          4  floor commercial space.

          5                 The project is a replacement in kind

          6  of the previously demolished city- owned building,

          7  and will conform to two other buildings, continuous

          8  lots that are to be rehabbed also by NHS under the

          9  Storeworks Program.

         10                 The property at 393 Saratoga, which

         11  is adjacent to Land Use 128, was sold to NHS in

         12  September of 2005, and is almost at completion, 97

         13  percent.  It is in contract to be sold to a

         14  purchaser from the Bedford- Stuyvesant community.

         15                 The property at 391 Saratoga Avenue

         16  has previously been approved for disposition by the

         17  council, and is currently waiting approval of the

         18  construction plans by the Department of Buildings.

         19                 NHS has substantial experience in the

         20  Storeworks Program.  Throughout the City, NHS has

         21  developed and completed 97 buildings with 246 units

         22  under the Program.  In Council District 41 alone,

         23  NHS has completed and sold 12 buildings under the

         24  Program, and currently has another 13 buildings at

         25  various stages of development, including three that

                                                            13

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  are nearing completion and sale to neighborhood

          3  residents.

          4                 Both HPD and NHS have briefed

          5  Councilman Mealy's legislative director on this

          6  item.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          9                 Just so I understand, there are two

         10  existing other programs going forward on either side

         11  of 395 Saratoga Avenue, is that correct?

         12                 MR. WATERS:  Yes, there are three--.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Where they

         14  are both on one side?

         15                 MR. WATERS:  Yes, there are three

         16  contiguous lots in the same program.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Right, but

         18  this is the third one in the sequence?

         19                 MR. WATERS:  This is the third one.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So, you said

         21  it was 391, 393 are already in the works?

         22                 MR. WATERS:  That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And then,

         24  this is 395.

         25                 MR. WATERS:  Right, one is in
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          2  construction, and one is still in development, and

          3  this is the one, on the corner, is the 395.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  All by NHS?

          5                 MR. WATERS:  That is correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, and

          7  this would be you said, how many units?

          8                 MR. WATERS:  Three, including the

          9  commercial.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, are

         11  there other questions on this one?

         12                 Okay, what I am going to suggest

         13  since I appreciate that you all have briefed the

         14  legislative director of Council Member Mealy, I have

         15  not has occasion to consult with her myself on this

         16  subject.

         17                 So what I am going to do is at the

         18  end of this hearing, we are going to recess this one

         19  over to tomorrow morning at 9:45, and we will be

         20  prepared to vote at that time, or we will continue

         21  our discussions on the subject.  But seeing that

         22  there are no other questions at the present moment,

         23  and that there is no other member of the public

         24  wishing to testify on the subject, I am going to

         25  close the hearing now on Land Use Number 128 with
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          2  the possibility of re- opening it tomorrow morning

          3  at 9:45.  That is non- ULURP Number 20065399, again,

          4  it is at 395 Saratoga Avenue, and we are going to

          5  open the hearing on our last item of the day.  I

          6  think we are finished with the HPD items.

          7                 So we thank you all, as always, for

          8  being here.

          9                 MR. WATERS:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The next item

         11  is a 197- A Plan.  It is Community Board 8, it is a

         12  Waterfront 197- A Plan, and let me introduce this

         13  item by saying, first of all, that this is the first

         14  one of these that this committee has seen since I

         15  have been the chair for the past seven months or so.

         16    They are rare in general, and it is really a

         17  testament to the work and professionalism of

         18  Community Board 8, which I should fully disclose is

         19  half in my district and half in the district of

         20  Council Member Jessica Lappin.  So, we are

         21  particularly proud of them for all of their work.

         22  There are two chairs of the 197- A Committee, of

         23  Community Board 8, Judith Schneider and Helene

         24  Simon, both of whom are here today, and we are very

         25  glad that they are here, and this plan as we are
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          2  going to hear in a few minutes is really a vision

          3  for the revitalization of the Queensboro Bridge area

          4  and the streets are really, 59th to 61st Street,

          5  between the river and 2nd Avenue, for most of it,

          6  but then there is also a portion right along the

          7  waterfront, which goes up to around 63rd Street, and

          8  we are really very glad that you are here to

          9  introduce this item.

         10                 So, what I am going to do is, I would

         11  like to call up Judith Schneider, and Paul Buckhurst

         12  to do the presentation, in whatever combination you

         13  all would find appropriate here, and whenever you

         14  are ready, just please identify yourselves for the

         15  record, and we are ready to get started.

         16                 You can go right ahead and get

         17  started, welcome.

         18                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Good afternoon.  I am

         19  Judith Schneider.  I am co- chair with Helene Simon

         20  of the 197- A Committee of the Queensboro Bridge

         21  area, 197- A Plan of Community Board 8.

         22                 The plan has been prepared to address

         23  open space, waterfront access, and related issues

         24  for the Queensboro Bridge area.  The area in the

         25  vicinity of the Queensboro Bridge has relatively
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          2  little open space, and limited access to the

          3  waterfront, and is notably lacking in street

          4  greenery.

          5                 Manhattan Community District 8 is one

          6  of the most densely populated residential areas in

          7  the City.  Its parks and open spaces are highly

          8  valued resources.  Proposed and active development

          9  projects in or adjacent to the study area will add

         10  additional population in the next ten years.

         11                 In 2002, Community Board 8 passed a

         12  resolution authorizing a 197- A Plan for the

         13  Queensboro Bridge area to help guide the City in its

         14  attempts to revitalize the area.

         15                 The FDR Drive construction will be

         16  completed in April`07, and the former heliport site

         17  will no longer be needed as a detour roadway for

         18  traffic.

         19                 This is a unique opportunity to

         20  express a vision for this gem of waterfront

         21  property, and I should just add, that there are no

         22  plans by the City to make this a heliport in the

         23  future.

         24                 From the onset of this plan, we have

         25  been involved in major outreach and coordination
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          2  with the community, and the New York City agencies

          3  involved have been the Parks Department, the

          4  Department of Transportation, Economic Development,

          5  Landmarks Preservation, the New York State

          6  Department of Transportation, and the Department of

          7  Environmental Protection, as well as City Planning.

          8                 We want to thank you for this

          9  opportunity to present our Plan to you, and now I

         10  would like to introduce our planner, Paul Buckhurst,

         11  of Buckhurst, Fish and Jacquemart, who will now do a

         12  powerpoint presentation, and we will answer any

         13  questions you might have.

         14                 MR. BUCKHURST:  Thank you for the

         15  opportunity here of presenting this plan, which I

         16  will do in summary form.

         17                 I also wanted to mention that we have

         18  handed out hard copies of that presentation should

         19  you want to follow it in your booklets.

         20                 As Judy has mentioned, there was

         21  three or four key goals, and I am just going to

         22  highlight one as Judith really covered them, and

         23  that is improving the bridge setting. Queensboro

         24  Bridge was completed in 1909.  Its current setting

         25  is relatively unattractive and so, one of the goals
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          2  of this plan is to really do it justice.

          3                 As mentioned earlier, the study

          4  extends on the West Side from 2nd Avenue down to the

          5  East River.  It is really a two block width,

          6  covering both 59th and 60th Streets, and as

          7  mentioned earlier, does extend up to 63rd street,

          8  that is because there is an existing pedestrian

          9  bridge which is now the only prime access for

         10  pedestrians to get to the esplanade, north of our

         11  study area.

         12                 In summary, the recommendations will

         13  take the various areas in turn but this just

         14  provides an overall image which focuses really on

         15  three particular aspects; the greening of 59th and

         16  60th Streets, with improved streetscape and tree

         17  planting in order to provide more attractive

         18  amenities for people moving from Tramway Park which

         19  is now under construction fortunately, which gives

         20  us in a way a head start to the implementation as

         21  planned, and providing therefore improved pedestrian

         22  access towards the East River.

         23                 Secondly, we focused too on the ramp

         24  at 60th Street, which is currently used temporarily

         25  for vehicles onto the FDR Drive.  The plan suggests

                                                            20

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  converting that really for primary pedestrian use,

          3  providing access to Pavilion Park, the upper level,

          4  and to the East River esplanade at the lower level.

          5                 Finally, we have prepared some

          6  alternative ideas for the treatment of the East

          7  River Park itself, as it extends from underneath the

          8  Bridge up northward to the existing esplanade.

          9                 I have put in this image of the new

         10  Tramway Park. As I mentioned, it is now under

         11  construction after a years' delay, and this will

         12  provide a much more attractive gateway to this

         13  particular study area.

         14                 Just to the east, is the first small

         15  park.  It is called 14 Honey Locust Park, though I

         16  think it has 13 Locust trees in it, and our focus

         17  was really on two areas.  The Parks Department

         18  examining ways to make this area much more

         19  attractive and more green, but DOT advised us that

         20  the southern end of the park will continue to be

         21  used for vehicle storage and material storage.  We

         22  therefore, have recommended that that be screened

         23  with a masonry wall which echo's the architecture of

         24  the existing viaduct, which you can see at the top

         25  of that slide, and this will really make this, not
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          2  just a fence but an extension in a way of the

          3  historic bridge.

          4                 In addition, there is a ramp that

          5  actually leads nowhere.  It stops as you reach the

          6  Queensboro Bridge roadway, and it overlooks both the

          7  14 Locust Park as well as the ramp for vehicles,

          8  which is to the top and left of this slide.  Our

          9  report suggests that this could be effectively

         10  screened by a series of panels, which might display

         11  the history of the Bridge and its construction,

         12  given its historic importance.

         13                 The connections, as I mentioned

         14  earlier, between 2nd and the River are really

         15  important.  This view is looking west along 60th

         16  Street, and we suggest that new streetscape could

         17  include Greenwich sets to separate pedestrian paths

         18  from vehicles on 60th Street, additional tree

         19  planting and street furniture in order to give a

         20  more consistent design approach to this very

         21  important area around the Bridge.

         22                 We also recommend that the copper

         23  lighting be banished, and replaced by historic light

         24  fixtures, and DOT and the Landmarks Commission have

         25  both approved this as a particular recommendation.
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          2                 Moving towards the River, we come to

          3  the key elements of access to the River and

          4  treatment of the park itself, and I mentioned the

          5  importance of the ramp leading from 60th Street up

          6  to the upper level of the proposed park system.

          7  This current view shows the existing roadway, the

          8  support for the Tramway, which you can just see that

          9  framework in the center of the picture, and then the

         10  very interesting Pavilion Park, which as you know,

         11  is the sanitation yard and shared at one stage.

         12                 It has a sculpture by Alice Aycock on

         13  its roof, which is difficult to see given the

         14  current construction going on, and all of the

         15  vehicle activity.  This drawing suggests that that

         16  63rd Street ramp be converted to pedestrian use with

         17  landscaping to provide a gateway, and then giving a

         18  clear and attractive means of access onto the

         19  Pavilion Park, which overlooks to East River.

         20                 Pavilion Park is currently primarily

         21  used by dogs as a dog run.  It is almost fully

         22  paved, and has very little landscape treatment but

         23  as you can see from this slide, it offers really

         24  fantastic views across the River.  This shows the

         25  underside of Queensboro Bridge, as well as views
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          2  north and south. The plan currently suggests that

          3  although we retained the use of the dog run on the

          4  norther section, needless to say, there was

          5  significant debate at community meetings about the

          6  dog run, we also wanted to soften the upper level

          7  though with new plantings, and this slide shows the

          8  conversion where we believe attractive landscaping

          9  could be provided without necessarily any

         10  significant damage to the existing infrastructure.

         11  We are also advocating, and you can just make it out

         12  on this slide, that some glass blocks be inserted in

         13  the floor here to create better lighting conditions

         14  for the space below.

         15                 Two sketch plans are provided for the

         16  East River Park.  One shows a more chervil- lineal

         17  perch, which would connect to your existing

         18  esplanade north of 63th Street, and the park would

         19  extend below Pavilion Park, and make the Pavilion

         20  Park at the lower level a kind of enclosed second

         21  level, which we think is a very exciting option.

         22                 An alternative is treating the

         23  esplanade in a more formal and traditional way, with

         24  a promenade set against the River, and in this Plan,

         25  the lower level of Pavilion Park is partially used
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          2  as a storage area for the Parks Department, given

          3  they will need space for their service vehicles and

          4  materials.               In both cases, we have

          5  advocated the addition of a small cafe, which could

          6  either be a year- round restaurant or a seasonal

          7  cafe.  This will do two things, it will provide some

          8  revenues for park maintenance, more importantly

          9  create an area of activity because in a way this

         10  part of the esplanade park will be a dead end

         11  because it stops underneath the Bridge.  So, the

         12  idea of having a cafe here is a good one we think

         13  because it will create, as I say, a focus of

         14  activity.

         15                 The cross section of the Pavilion

         16  Park, the old sanitation building, is shown here

         17  indicating the planting at the upper level, open

         18  views out across the River, and then below the

         19  possibilities for some small- scale recreation,

         20  sitting out areas, and perhaps in one option, a cafe

         21  could be located within the structure to give it

         22  shelter from the weather.

         23                 The last slide really is a sketch

         24  from the 63rd Street pedestrian bridge looking

         25  south, and it shows the opportunity here for a two-
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          2  level park, Pavilion Park, views across the upper

          3  level, enclosure below as an extension of the

          4  current esplanade, and we think this could create a

          5  very exciting focus for the East River, and divide a

          6  more attractive setting for Alice Aycock's

          7  sculpture.

          8                 Finally, two views of one of my

          9  favorite bridges in the City.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         12  thank you for that presentation and again,

         13  congratulations on all of the work that has gone

         14  into this.  I know it has been a great deal of work

         15  to put this all together.

         16                 I have just a couple of points of

         17  clarification but before I do that, I know that I

         18  said that Council Member Lappin and I share the

         19  community board, and that is fully true, but in

         20  fairness, just about everything in this plan is in

         21  her district, with the exception of Tramway Park,

         22  which belongs in District 4.

         23                 So, I thought I would give Council

         24  Member Lappin a chance to make a statement on this

         25  197- A.

                                                            26

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.

          4                 I just wanted to iterate my support.

          5  This is something that I know the community board,

          6  and specifically the Schneider's and Helene Simon

          7  have been working on for a long time, and as you

          8  mentioned in your testimony this is an area that is

          9  densely populated with very little green open space,

         10  and this is an opportunity to really improve upon

         11  what we have, and make these few blocks into much

         12  more enjoyable, useable, and better open space for

         13  the community.

         14                 I was very happy to put money into

         15  the budget this year for the Heliport Park, which is

         16  a component of this plan, $300,000, and Borough

         17  President Stringer who I think also put some money

         18  into the budget for the park, and is interested in

         19  working collarboratively on that, and I just wanted

         20  to commend the community board, and particularly the

         21  individuals who are here today, a plan like this is

         22  a big undertaking, it does not happen on its own.

         23  Certainly, it takes a lot of work and dedication and

         24  it is the kind of thing that I think communities and

         25  community board's across the city should be doing,
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          2  really taking a look at what we have, and coming up

          3  with a comprehensive plan to make it better for the

          4  community and for everybody in the City who utilizes

          5  that open space.

          6                 So, I just wanted to state that on

          7  the record.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         11  Council Member Lappin.

         12                 Just a few questions from me,

         13  obviously I am very familiar with the plan but

         14  wanted to follow up on a couple of points.

         15                 One of them was the kiosk at the end

         16  of the bridge.  There is discussion in the plan

         17  about the desire to preserve the kiosk, maybe move

         18  it over slightly, there were other discussions about

         19  moving across the street to Tramway Park, my real

         20  question here is, and if you could actually just

         21  give us a little bit of your sense of your view on

         22  the subject, but also the kiosk itself, what is it?

         23  Is it something that people could enjoy visiting if

         24  it were in a place where they could actually access

         25  it?
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          2                 It is a pretty broad question there,

          3  but you see where I am going.

          4                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  You have asked a

          5  couple of things.

          6                 First let us start with what is it.

          7  There were five of them originally when the bridge

          8  was built in 1909, and one of them is at the

          9  Brooklyn Museum, it has been restored, Brooklyn

         10  Children's Museum.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Actually that

         12  one has been moved, and that is the one that they

         13  moved to Roosevelt Island. It was the entrance to

         14  the Brooklyn Children's Museum, and it is going to

         15  serve as a welcoming visitors center on Roosevelt

         16  Island for people who take the Tram over.  My

         17  predecessor put money to both relocate it, and to do

         18  a little work.  It is not in its permanent site, it

         19  is being housed on the Southtown Development site

         20  but it is going to be relocated and be somewhat

         21  staffed, and have some pictures and historical

         22  information about the Island. The one that was at

         23  the Children's Museum is in excellent shape because

         24  it was being used, Glasstovino (phonetic) tiles, and

         25  has historical significance and architectural
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          2  significance but.

          3                 I have not seen the one on the

          4  bridge.

          5                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  The one on the bridge

          6  does not have all of that yet but when they spend

          7  close to the million dollars to restore it, it will

          8  supposedly look just like the other one because they

          9  are restoring all of the Glasstovino tiles and

         10  everything.

         11                 Access, there is no access because

         12  you cannot cross to that part of the bridge.  If it

         13  were put somewhere else, yes, it could have access

         14  but we have gone through that with Landmarks, and

         15  they said you can move it on the Plaza but they did

         16  not want it removed from the bridge.

         17                 We went to DOT, we tried to get them

         18  to move it to the middle of the Island because we

         19  are spending all this money to fix it, and our

         20  feeling is that even with the bollard's they put up,

         21  it is not going to stop it from being hit again once

         22  it is restored.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Just so I

         24  understand, so DOT is putting in the money to

         25  restore this.
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          2                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, part of this

          3  bridge contract.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  They do not

          5  want to move it to the center, Landmarks--.

          6                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Said it would be okay

          7  with them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Would be okay

          9  to move it to the center?

         10                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And is

         12  anybody advocating moving it across the street?

         13                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Nobody is

         15  advocating moving it across the street?

         16                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  No because that park

         17  is underway and it is all--.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  That is

         19  already set in terms of the design of that.

         20                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, right, right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  There is

         22  nothing in this plan which would actually make

         23  the--.

         24                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  No, we just wanted

         25  them to move it to the center so it would stand a
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          2  better chance of being preserved now that they are

          3  spending all of this money.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  But there is

          5  nothing in here which would allow pedestrian access

          6  to that middle area on the bridge because that is

          7  just far too dangerous for anybody to be there,

          8  right?

          9                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, the

         11  other question I had was, one block north of the

         12  bridge on 61st Street and York, there is an empty

         13  lot, a Sheldon Solow (phonetic) lot, this is going

         14  to be from what I read in the plans, it is going to

         15  be a 35- story residential building?

         16                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Maybe taller.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, can you

         18  give me a sense of the status of what you know about

         19  that development, and whether he has been engaged

         20  in, when I say he, Mr. Solow has been engaged in

         21  this, and a participant in any way?

         22                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  He was a participant

         23  for the first glass building which is on the Glick

         24  side, the one that is up already in the mid- block.

         25  He participated in the mitigation that was necessary
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          2  by City Planning.  Each developer as they bought a

          3  piece of the Glick site, had a, depending on the

          4  percentage of the property they bought, they had to

          5  give that mitigation back to the community, and it

          6  is that mitigation from the building that is

          7  existing now, that is paying for the re- do of

          8  Tramway Park.  He had to put in capital money, and

          9  then he had to put in money into the maintenance

         10  fund to keep it up.  So, he has done that for the

         11  existing building.

         12                 The new building, however, is not in

         13  the Glick site.  So, there is nothing mandatory

         14  about him supporting the waterfront park that is

         15  going up.

         16                 However, he has been at City Planning

         17  for the last five years, eight years, trying to

         18  negotiate exactly what he is going to do with this

         19  building, and when that building is up, he is going

         20  to have some kind of a glass something- or- other

         21  attaching the two buildings, so that the people can

         22  have access from the existing building to the new

         23  building because there will be a garage there, and

         24  they will be able to park in that, under the new

         25  building.
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          2                 So, he will be doing some work on

          3  what was the Glick site, but he has already done his

          4  mitigation for the Glick site.  My off- record

          5  thinking is he is asking for zoning changes--.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Just to be

          7  clear, you are fully on the record.

          8                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So, if you

         10  want to make a off- the- record comment, now is not

         11  the time.

         12                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Okay, on the record

         13  he is asking for zoning changes so when it comes to

         14  the City Council, which I assume it does come to the

         15  City Council sometime, I hope that the council

         16  members will ask him to support the waterfront park.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thanks.

         18                 Let me ask another one about the

         19  Pavilion Park for a second.

         20                 Right now, the FDR Drive is cruising

         21  right through the area, the underside of what we saw

         22  in the diagrams.  Has state DOT opined at all on

         23  this 197- A, and the notion of making the esplanade

         24  walkway cafe, other things in the area where the

         25  Drive is now, and whether that would have any impact

                                                            34

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  on the future of the FDR?

          3                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Yes, we had a meeting

          4  last week, I think it was last week, but last week's

          5  meeting was state DOT, Parks Department and EDC

          6  because that property is still in the possession,

          7  under their jurisdiction, and state DOT has been

          8  willing to give the amount of money that they have

          9  in their budget to restore that site, exactly as the

         10  way they found it, that is what their contract calls

         11  for, but they will do what EDC asks them to do,

         12  through Parks Department, has to cement their

         13  request to EDC and then they will pass it on.

         14                 They have also offered their

         15  engineer, the state engineer, to do the drawings for

         16  the Parks Department, so that is what they are

         17  working on now, and yes, the state will not be

         18  restoring it to the way they found it, they will be

         19  restoring it to the way Parks and EDC have asked

         20  them to restore it as far as the money goes.

         21                 In other words, they cannot build a

         22  complete park.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Are there

         24  other questions on the 197- A Plan?

         25                 Well, one last one from me, the Carl
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          2  Schurz goes down to, how far down does Carl Schurz

          3  Park--?

          4                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Eighty- fourth.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Eighty-

          6  fourth, and then there is more waterfront access

          7  somewhere between where we are talking--.

          8                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Then there is John

          9  Jay, but that is really on the other side of the

         10  highway, and then there is a little strip of land

         11  around 75th, 72 to 78 maybe, because they had been

         12  talking about putting a ferry landing there, which

         13  is gone now, as well as the one at 60th.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The reason,

         15  of course, that I ask the question is because I

         16  think we all share the vision of trying to find the

         17  connection all the way around the island of

         18  Manhattan with green, open public space, and I find

         19  myself frequently looking at the area south of this,

         20  and looking to the outboard detour roadway, and the

         21  future of the Con Edison redevelopment, and the East

         22  River Science Park, and everything down to

         23  Stuyvesant Cove, all the way down to the 20's and

         24  then going further down, but this is a challenging

         25  one for us.
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          2                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Well, there is a

          3  place here at this site, one of Paul's slides shows

          4  a little piece of land beyond the sanitation

          5  station.

          6                 We call it`No Man's Land,' which the

          7  Parks Department for the time being, is planning on

          8  fencing that off so that Carolyn Maloney had a

          9  meeting, I think--.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Yes,

         11  recently.

         12                 MS. SCHNEIDER: -- somebody from both

         13  of your staffs' were there, and if they did make

         14  some kind of a hookup, that is where it would hook

         15  up to that piece of property, to the south of the

         16  sanitation station.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Well, it is

         18  one of things I find most appealing about all

         19  efforts to try to beautify and promote public access

         20  to the waterfront because it gets us a little closer

         21  to that goal, and so, those are the questions that I

         22  had on this.  I know we also have another person

         23  here to testify in support of the plan.

         24                 So unless you had any final comments

         25  to make, let me thank you both for your time and

                                                            37

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  your testimony today.

          3                 I would like to welcome Kathleen

          4  Taylor from the Borough President's Office, from

          5  Borough President Scott Stringer to come on up, and

          6  when you are ready, the floor is yours.

          7                 MS. TAYLOR:  Good afternoon Chair

          8  Garodnick, and committee members.  Thank you for the

          9  opportunity to speak today.

         10                 My name is Kathleen Taylor.  I am

         11  from Borough President Scott Stringer's office, and

         12  I am here to reiterate the Borough President's

         13  support for the 197- A Plan.

         14                 This is exactly the kind of

         15  neighborhood- based proactive planning our office

         16  seeks to encourage.  We think Community Board 8 has

         17  created a great plan.  It comes from the community,

         18  it will increase their open space and waterfront

         19  access.

         20                 We feel it is a particularly good

         21  example of a 197- A Plan because it is manageable,

         22  achievable and it has got a discrete area with many

         23  city- owned properties, which would make

         24  implementation a lot easier.  Of course, it will

         25  take the coordination of many city agencies to
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          2  implement this plan, and we do look forward to being

          3  helpful in any way possible during the

          4  implementation process.

          5                 We would also like to take this time

          6  to commend Community Board 8 for taking the

          7  initiative to create this Plan.

          8                 Thanks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         10  very  much.

         11                 Any questions?

         12                 Okay seeing none, let me just note

         13  for the record that this Plan was voted unanimously

         14  by the community board pursuant to 197- A of the

         15  City Charter.

         16                 The borough president, as you heard,

         17  supported the Plan and issued a recommendation

         18  approving the application on April 19th, 2006, and

         19  the Department of City Planning approved this Plan

         20  on July 12th, 2006 and filed it pursuant to Section

         21  197- D of the Charter, with both the Speaker of the

         22  City Council and the borough president, and seeing

         23  there is no other member of the public wishing to

         24  testify on this matter, I am going to close the

         25  hearing on Land Use Number 217, which again is the
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          2  Waterfront 197- A Plan from Manhattan Community

          3  Board 8.

          4                 We have no other items on the agenda

          5  on today's calendar, so we are going to be voting on

          6  two items, Land Use 217, which is again, the 197- A

          7  Plan, and Land Use 218, which is the Atlantic Avenue

          8  residence.

          9                 The Chair recommends an aye vote on

         10  both of those items, and we are going to lay over

         11  until tomorrow at 9:55, that is a change in time, we

         12  are going to be at 9:55 tomorrow morning, Land Use

         13  Number 128, which is the property in the district of

         14  Council Member Darlene Mealy.

         15                 So on Land Use 217 and Land Use 218,

         16  the Chair recommends an aye vote, and the counsel

         17  will please call the roll.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chairman

         19  Garodnick.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Aye on both.

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         22  Member Baez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye on both.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         25  Member Lanza.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Aye.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  By a vote

          4  of three in the affirmative, none in the negative,

          5  the aforementioned items are adopted.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          7  very much, and let me again congratulate Community

          8  Board 8, and thank them for all their hard work.

          9                 It is great to see you all down here

         10  at the City Council, and again, we are going to

         11  recess this hearing until tomorrow morning, August

         12  15th at 9:55 a.m.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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